
u.s. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
WASHINGTON, DC 20410-5000

ASSISTANT SECRETARY FOR
PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING

VIA FACSIMILE AND OVERNIGHT DELIVERY

Hon. Carlos Alvarez
Mayor
Miami-Dade County, Florida
Stephen P. Clark Center
111 N.W. First Street
Suite 2910
Miami, FL 33128-1994

Hon. Chainnan Bruno A. Barreiro
Board of County Commissioners
Miami-Dade County, Florida
Stephen P. Clark Center
111 N.W. First Street
Suite 2910
Miami, FL 33128-1994

Subject: Declaration of Default - Section 8 Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract

Dear Messrs. Alvarez and Barreiro:

Pursuant to the United States Housing Act of 1937 ("the Act"), the Miami-Dade Housing
Agency ("MDHA") entered into a Consolidated Annual Contributions Contract for Rental
Certificate and Rental Voucher Programs - Section 8 ("Section 8 ACC") on September 11, 1998,
with the Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD"). HUD hereby provides
notice of its determination that MDHA has failed to satisfy its obligations under, and is in default
of, the Section 8 ACe.

Based on a review by the finn, Deloitte & Touche, LLP, a management review conducted
by HUD, and other available infonnation, HUD has determined that MDHA has violated both
the specific provisions of the Section 8 ACC and the statutes, regulations, and/or other HUD
requirements that implement the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program. Under Section
10(a) of the Section 8 ACC, MDHA must comply with "the requirements of the Act and all HUD
regulations and other requirements, including any amendments or changes in the law or HUD
requirements." Accordingly, a violation of the Act or any applicable HUD regulation or other
requirement is also a violation of the Section 8 ACe.

The following is a description ofMDHA's violations upon which HUD is making this
detennination: .
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1) Violation of Section 8 ACC. Sections 9 and 11

Sections 9 and 11 of the Section ACC are designed to ensure that MDHA does not
expend more funds than it has available for its program. In addition, Sections 9 and 11 of the
Section 8 ACC require that MDHA establish and follow an operating budget. In FY 2004 and
2005, MDHA operated its Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program at substantial deficits,
depleting its reserves, which contributed to its having to accept over $26 million in nonfederal
funds to subsidize federal programs, including the Section 8 program. MDHA is required to pay
at least $9.6 million of these funds over 10 years with income from non-subsidized MDHA
sources. The nonfederal funds consisted of Documentary Surtax funds received by Miami-Dade
County under state law. The transfer of County Surtax funds to subsidize the Section 8 Housing
Choice Voucher Program violates state law because it is an impermissible use of those funds.

2) Violation of Sections 3(a). 81c
and 24 C.F.R. § 982.516(a)

MDHA did not perform annual tenant recertifications in a timely manner. See Sections
3(a), 8(c)(3), and 8(0)(5) of the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended, 42 U.S.c.
§§1437a(a)(1), 1437f(c)(3) and (0)(5); 24 C.F.R. § 982.516(a). MDHA failed to conduct annual
reexaminations of the family income of approximately 85% of its Section 8 program participants
since 2005, or in some cases since 2003 and 2004. Because of this failure to conduct
reexaminations, MDHA cannot assure HUD that its limited Section 8 funds were expended in
accordance with the program requirements.

3) Violation of Section 8 ACC. Section 14(a) and 24 C.F.R. § 982.158( a)

MDHA has failed to maintain accurate books of account and records in accordance with

HUD requirements. Pursuant to section 14(a) of the Section 8 ACC, MDHA "must maintain
complete and accurate books of account and records for a program. The books and records must
be in accordance with HUD requirements, and must permit speedy and effective audit." See also
24 C.F.R. § 982.158(a).

a) Annual Financial Statements Contained Material Accounting Errors
For each fiscal year from 2001 through 2005, MDHA has failed to prepare annual financial
statements that are free from material accounting errors. For each of these years, MDHA has
needed to record prior period adjustments (PPA) in its Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
program to correct errors in its previously issued financial statements. Specifically, MDHA
reported a PPA of $12,940,288 (representing a 535% adjustment) for FY 2001; MDHA reported
a PPA of $727,378 (representing a 25% adjustment) for FY 2003; MDHA reported a PPA of
$3,024,729 (representing a 42% adjustment) for FY 2004; and MDHA reported a PPA of
$2,547,190 (representing a 18% adjustment) for FY 2005. Additionally, in 2003, MDHA
~eporteda PPA of $488,990 (representing a 12% adjustment) from its FY 2002 unaudited
financial statement balances, which balances were used because MDHA never filed audited
financial statements covering FY 2002 that were acceptedby HUD.
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b) MDHA 1m ro erl Re orted A roximatel 6 Million Receivable Due From HUD
Additionally, in its 2005 audited financial statements, MDHA improperly reported a $6.009
million receivable due from HUD for an ACC Reserve account deficit, which decreased to
$5.783 million in MDHA's 2006 unaudited financial statements, for which MDHA was on
notice that it would not receive payment. The accounting errors distorted the true financial
position of MDHA' s Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher program.

c) MDHA's Voucher Mana ement S stem Information is Inconsistent With Its Financial
Statements

MDHA's reporting in the Voucher Management System (VMS) also does not match the
MDHA's financial statements, and the differences are material. Voucher renewal funding is
dependent on verifiable and complete data reported by the public housing agency in the VMS.
MDHA's inaccurate reporting is extremely serious and may further adversely impact the
financial viability ofMDHA's HVC program, placing assisted families at risk.

d) MDHA has Failed to Account for A roximatel 6.3 million in HAP Funds
Finally, in fiscal year 2006, MDHA failed to account for approximately $6.3 million of Federal
funds. Based on budget authority provided by HUD less expenses reported by MDHA in the
VMS, MDHA should have had a Housing Assistance Payment (HAP) surplus of $17.8 million.
But MDHA's unaudited financial statement for fiscal year 2006 identifies a total surplus of
approximately $14 million. HUD has determined that this amount includes a phantom receivable
of approximately $6 million, leaving a balance of approximately $7.8 million in surplus HAP
funds. Of the missing $10 million ($17.8 m - $7.8), HUD has determined that $3.7 million was
improperly offset against prior year deficits, which leaves $6.3 million for which MDHA has not
accounted.

4) Violation of Section 8 ACC, Section 13(c) and HUD Notice PIH 2006-3.

Section 13(c) of the Section 8 ACC provides that the public housing agency may only
withdraw deposited program receipts for use in connection with the program in accordance with
HUD requirements.

HUD Notice PIH 2006-3, Reduction of Annual Contributions (ACC) Reserves,
Rescission of Requirements Under Form HUD-52681 for Most Housing Choice Voucher
Program Units, and Sanctions for Failure to Submit Required Financial Reports Pursuant to 24
C.ER. § 5.801, issued January 11,2006, expressly states that ACC reserve account deficits from
2004 and prior years shall not be paid from the Undesignated Fund Balance Account (now
known as Unrestricted Net Assets - HAP) and will not be funded by HUD.

MDHA reported a deficit in HAP funds for the period October 1, 2004 through
December 31,2004 of$2,016,716. MDHA eliminated $1,719,183 of this deficit by using
funding provided by HUD for the calendar year 2006 HAP, in violation of HUD requirements.

This letter constitutes HUD's notification to MDHA, under Section 15(a) of the Section 8
ACC that it is in default of its obligations to HUD under the Section 8 ACC. Although not
required by the Section 8 ACC or HUD regulations, MDHA is hereby provided with 15calendar
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days from the date of this letter (i.e. until close of business May 9, 2007) to demonstrate that
HUD's determination of default is not substantively accurate or to cure these violations. Please
provide any response you may wish to submit to my office at the following address: Room 4100,
451 Seventh Street, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20410. Absent a satisfactory response from
MDHA, HUD will avail itself of any options provided by statute, regulation, or the Section 8
ACC.

Please contact Milan M. Ozdinec, Deputy Assistant Secretary for Public Housing and
Voucher Programs, if you have any questions regarding the above determinations. He may be
reached at 202-708-1380.

Enclosures via Overnight Delivery only




